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Food for Progress Program (FFPr)

Request for Proposals (RFP) to Carry out an Impact Study for Activity 5 “Financial Services: Facilitate Agricultural Loans” of the Food for Progress Program (FFPr) in Guatemala.
[bookmark: _Toc115692591]Overview
RFP NUMBER: FFPR16-RFP-GT1075│SERVICIOS -GT-2210.01
RFP ISSUE DATE: OCTOBER 04, 2022
OUTSTANDING QUESTIONS: OCTOBER 17, 2022 – 5:00 PM EST
PROPOSALS DUE (DATE): OCTOBER 24, 2022 – 5:00 PM EST

Counterpart International (Counterpart) is requesting a Request for Proposals (RFP) to issue a Vendor Contract to conduct the Impact Study for Activity 5 “Financial Services: Facilitating Agricultural Loans” under the 2016 Food for Progress Program funded by the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) and Implemented by Counterpart in Guatemala.  


This RFP consists of the following sections:
Section A: Supplies or Services and Prices/Costs
Section B: Background
Section C: Statement of Work
Section D: Proposal Guidelines and Selection Criteria
Section E: Program Monitoring Plan - Indicators
Section F: Counterpart Results Framework
Section G: Program Implementation Map
Section H: Provider Contract Terms and Conditions

Counterpart invites all questions and proposals to be submitted electronically on or before the date and time specified above. Submissions should be emailed to Procurement.guatemala@counterpart.org.

The Bidder shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of the Proposal and Counterpart will in no case be responsible or liable for those costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the RFP.  Proposals should be completed in accordance with the instructions in this RFP.

All submissions must identify the RFP number: FFPR16-RFP-GT1075│SERVICIOS -GT-2210.01 the name of your organization in the subject line.
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[bookmark: _Toc115692592]ACRONYMS
FGD 	Acronym in English Focus Group Conversation	
FFPr 	Acronym in English Food for Progress	
KII	Acronym in English Key Informant Interviews
MAGA 	Acronym in Spanish for the Ministry of Agriculture, Livestock and Food
MICOOPE	Acronym in Spanish for National Federation of Cooperatives in Guatemala
M&E 	Acronym in English Monitoring and Evaluation	
PMP 	Program Monitoring Plan
RFP 	Acronym in English Request for Proposals
ToR                  Terms of reference	
USDA 	United States Department of Agriculture	
USG 	Acronym in English Government of the United States	





[bookmark: _Toc115692593]Section A: Supplies or Services and Prices/Costs

[bookmark: _Toc115692594]A.1 PURPOSE:
The purpose of this Request for Proposal (RFP) is to request applications from an individual, company or organization (Bidders) to carry out an Impact Study for activity 5 of the 2016 Food for Progress Program (FFPr) implemented by Counterpart International in Guatemala called, “Financial Services: Facilitating Agricultural Loans.” This is a seven-year USDA-funded initiative awarded in September 2016. This activity is implemented by the National Federation of Savings and Credit Cooperatives, RL (MICOOPE) as of January 2018. A key objective of the Impact Assessment is collecting and providing data to measure the quantitative and qualitative magnitude of the change not only in the farmers who managed and obtained a loan, but also in their families. In addition, the Study is also expected to identify expected and unexpected positive effects (footprint) in the more than 7,000 farmers who obtained credit in Western Guatemala with the aim of showing the full range of potential benefits perceived by this segment served by the Food for Progress 2016 project with great success.

[bookmark: OLE_LINK1]The impact study must be carried out in 2023 during the months of January – March for the field study phase and the month of April for review, analysis and delivery of results. The evaluation team will be made up of the main consultant and his attendees and will work cooperatively with Counterpart International's USDA Program Director, or designee, based in the U.S., Guatemala-based FFPr Program Director, Guatemala-based Counterpart International field staff.

[bookmark: _Toc115692595]A.2 TYPE OF CONTRACT
This is a fixed price provider contract. All direct costs that are allowable, allocable and reasonable will be reimbursed. For the consideration established in the Supplier Agreement, the Contractor shall provide the deliverables or results described in Section C and comply with all the requirements of the Supplier Agreement.

[bookmark: _Toc115692596]A.3 EXECUTION PERIOD
The execution period of this supplier contract is expected to be carried out in  2023 during the months of January – March for the field study phase and the month of April for review, analysis and delivery of results.

Section B: Background

B.1 DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM AND ACTIVITY 5

Guatemala Food for Progress (FFPr) 2016 is a seven-year program funded by the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) and implemented by Counterpart International pursuant to cooperative agreement No. FFC-520-2016/013-00 signed between the parties on September 28, 2016. The project supports USDA FFPr's goals of increasing agricultural production and trade by increasing the use of improved agricultural techniques and technologies among target populations and improving linkages between buyers and sellers.

[bookmark: _Toc115692597]Three main objectives of the FFPr 2016 program are:

a. Promote capacity building programs and provide strategic training to strengthen the capacity of the Guatemalan Ministry of Agriculture, Livestock and Food -MAGA- to effectively manage the National Rural Extension System -SNER- and effectively expand agricultural production and trade;

b. Increase agricultural productivity by addressing market access and food security challenges, strengthening the skills and technical knowledge of extension agents from the public sector, NGOs and the private sector, developing the capacities of groups of agricultural and coffee producers;

c. As part of the exit strategy, Counterpart will promote USAC, MAGA, ANACAFE and MICOOPE to take the lead and Counterpart will only facilitate and support activities, unless they are new activities, so at the end of the project they can be sustainable.

Activity 5: “Financial Services: Facilitate Agricultural Loans”

Goal as of September 30, 2023 	8,400 individuals supported with credits
8,400 credits awarded
US$34,000,000 value of credits granted

Counterpart International will facilitate agricultural loans for coffee and horticultural producer groups by working with Guatemalan financial institutions to expand the reach and availability of financial products in the agricultural sector. Counterpart International will modify existing agricultural credit products offered by established credit unions and create new financial products to finance coffee production and smallholder crop and income diversification efforts. Counterpart International will select credit unions affiliated with the National Federation of Savings and Credit Cooperatives, RL (MICOOPE), to participate in this initiative and provide them with training in agricultural financial products and agricultural credit analysis.

What is Counterpart International's support for MICOOPE:
· Contracting of agricultural professionals to train credit advisors and heads of agencies of more than 60 agencies of 9 cooperatives with coverage in the following departments: Huehuetenango, San Marcos, Quetzaltenango, Quiché, Totonicapán, and Sololá that allow a better knowledge of the predominant crops of the area.
· Institutionalize agricultural methodologies in MICOOPE so that their financial systems can be compatible with their virtual platforms and streamline credit analysis and reduce credit payment delays by correctly performing credit analysis.
· The alliance with MICOOPE is promoted in the courses offered by Counterpart International in each of the coverage departments and makes it possible for those who are interested and meet the requested requirements to access credits: agricultural, livestock, qualification, and repairs. Marketing aspects are provided in the graduate courses, and it is at that time that the credit advisors, agency heads or the marketing area of the MICOOPE cooperatives provide the information and resolve doubts about Healthy Finances and Financial Education that allow promoters present (more than two thousand promoters) listen and transmit to their members of community groups (replies).

This activity is focused on geographic areas where the dominant value chain is coffee cultivation. The five target departments are:
1. Huehuetenango
2. Quetzaltenango
3. Saint Mark
4. Only the
5. Quiche
6. Totonicapán

In total, the study should cover 120-129 municipalities [footnoteRef:1]in the target departments, carrying out home visits to the homes of the more than 7,000 associates who have received loans in the five departments of Guatemala. [1: A stratified sample of the more than 7,000 associates will be carried out, which will be representative of the municipalities and farmers who have received agricultural credits] 


[bookmark: _Toc115692598]B.2 Relevant Program Documents

The contractor shall use all applicable USDA Food for Progress Program documents, including its Policies and Procedures, Monitoring and Evaluation Policy, and others.
Counterpart International will make available to the contractor the following documents related to the project:
1. 	Cooperation agreement between Counterpart International and MICOOPE, and its modifications.
2. 	MICOOPE's work plan
3. 	Project evaluation plan
4. 	Baseline evaluation of the FFPr 2016
5. 	Evaluation of the mid-term line of the FFPr 2016
6. 	MICOOPE monthly reports
7. 	MEL unit monitoring reports
[bookmark: _Toc115692599]Section C: Statement of Work

[bookmark: _Toc115692600]C.1 EVALUATION OBJECTIVE

Counterpart seeks the services of a third-party specialist or team of specialists to carry out an Impact Study for Activity 5 “Financial Services: Facilitate Agricultural Loans” for the FFPr2016 project in Guatemala in accordance with the terms of reference ( ToR ) of the this document, the framework established in the MTP. Counterpart anticipates that this evaluation will be carried out in the six departments of the Western Highlands specified above: Huehuetenango, Quetzaltenango, San Marcos, Quiché, Totonicapán, and Sololá, where the project has been and is implementing project activity 5. The list of municipalities to be covered in each department is presented in section G of this document.

This evaluation has the following objectives
1. Identify the main lessons learned from Activity 5 "Financial Services: Facilitate Agricultural Loans" of the Guatemala Food for Progress project through a qualitative and participatory process, which allows knowing beyond the results achieved.
2. Determine the percentage impact of Activity 5 “Financial Services: Facilitate Agricultural Loans” of the Guatemala Food for Progress program in the beneficiary families.
3. Prepare a Report by department and by Cooperative, which considers the impacts, lessons learned and success stories of Activity 5 "Financial Services: Facilitate Agricultural Loans" by consolidating all the inputs obtained during this consultancy and other measurement exercises and qualitative and quantitative analyzes that are implemented.

The study should also provide an analysis of the recent evolution and current reality of the coffee and agricultural sector and of the general socio-economic situation in the selected areas, with special attention to small coffee farmers/producers.

The evaluation design should use mixed methods, both qualitative and quantitative, to collect and analyze medium-term performance data.

[bookmark: _Toc115692601]C.2 EVALUATION QUESTIONS

The Assessment must provide and address the following questions:

Efficiency:
1. Do the agricultural loans granted to the members of the Cooperatives fulfill the function of what the member needs?
2. Has the work plan been executed as planned?
3. Have the resources (financial, human, etc.) allocated been sufficient to carry out the project activities?
4. Have execution problems been found?
5. How have execution problems been resolved?

Relevance:
1. Are these agricultural loans of utmost importance to the associates they benefit?
2. To what extent do agricultural loans meet the needs of borrowers?
3. To what extent does the design of Activity 5 of the Food for Progress 2016 project address the problem(s) it is intended to solve?
4. Is it necessary to review the design of Activity 5 of the Food for Progress 2016 project and the critical assumptions?

Effectiveness:
1. With the granting of agricultural loans, did the associates really achieve their objectives?
2. Is Activity 5 of the Food for Progress 2016 project on track to meet its goals and objectives?
3. Is it necessary to adjust the objectives of Activity 5 of the project Food for Progress 2016? If so, why and what goals would be more suitable?

Sustainability:
1. How does the partner relate agricultural loans to their sustainability?
2. To what extent are the established services and achievements of Activity 5 of the Food for Progress 2016 project likely to continue after the project ends?
3. Are the individuals likely to remain after the project ends?
4. What are the main risks for the sustainability of the project?

Impact:
1. What has been the positive impact for the associates who were granted the agricultural loan?
2. To what extent is the economic, cultural and political context and existing relevant activities reflected in the design of Activity 5 of the Food for Progress 2016 project?
3. Are there unforeseen consequences for farmers who managed credits in Cooperatives affiliated with the MICOOPE System? If so, what are they and are they positive, negative or neutral?

[bookmark: _Toc115692602]C.3 APPROACH AND METHODOLOGY

The context of the western region of Guatemala is dynamic and Counterpart seeks an innovative design in the methodology of this impact study. The study should include a combination of quantitative and qualitative methods and tools appropriate to the research questions. Both quantitative and qualitative data are expected to be provided to support the conclusions. Furthermore, even if secondary data is available for the assessment team to rely on, attempts should be made to obtain primary data using reliable methods to ensure data integrity.

The methods and tools used in the study may include a combination of the following:

Document review: The study team will find it useful to consult a wide range of reference documents related to the agricultural sector in western Guatemala, in addition to the project documents provided by Counterpart International.

Key Informant Interviews (KII): It is suggested that key informant interviews be conducted, including Counterpart International staff and associated consultants, staff from the Guatemalan National Federation of Savings and Credit Cooperatives (MICOOPE) based in Guatemala City, Capital and on the ground.

Focus Group Discussion: The study team is expected to conduct multiple rounds of focus group discussions with Counterpart International staff, MICOOPE credit advisors, and beneficiary farmers. Special effort should be made to ensure even participation and careful wording of key questions.

Survey: The study team will conduct a survey among the selected beneficiaries to collect the necessary data. The beneficiary sample must be randomly generated to include all beneficiary subgroups. The study team will detail in its Methodology Plan whether an in-depth survey, more relevant to qualitative information, or a broad quantitative survey will be carried out, with reasons that justify it.

Counterpart will help arrange appointments with MICOOPE, community members, government officials and other interested parties at the request of the team.

[bookmark: _Toc115692603]C.4 DELIVERABLES
study team is expected to provide Counterpart International with the following results:

A) [bookmark: _Toc115692604]Technical plan and economic offer 
The impact study team will develop a plan outlining data collection method, instruments, quality control tools, test survey plan and sample, and guidelines during the first week of work. In said plan, the economic offer must also be evidenced for its evaluation. The team will need to submit a final draft study plan detailing the information listed above, as well as draft data collection instruments, tools and guidelines to the Counterpart International field team and HQ prior to finalizing the plan. of the impact study. Counterpart International will support the study team's efforts to obtain information on the logistical and administrative procedures of the mission.

B) [bookmark: _Toc115692605]Study Approach

The impact study team should take into account that the study should focus on the following impact topics and sub-topics, for which some guiding questions are noted:

1. Production:
a. To date, what has been the most effective capacity development approach that results in the beneficiaries' business growth or increased income?
b. Which activities represent the best possible use of available resources to achieve results of greatest possible value to beneficiaries?

2. Economic:
a. Which of the activities are giving rise to professional relationships between companies in the target value chains?
b. How have the activities helped the financial education of the beneficiaries?
c. Which activities contributed the most to service providers, clients, the community and/or the organizations involved?

3. Family/Social (Quality of life):
a. How does the program contribute to the strength of the family and the community in the short, medium, and long term?

4. Loyalty / Satisfaction
a. How do you qualify the processes to receive the credit? (Time, cost, etc.)
b. What factors help or hinder beneficiaries to access credit?
c. What works best for whom, why and when?

5. Institutional:
a. Does the organization have a good understanding and knowledge of the customer and their needs?
b. Are the products offered flexible and adaptable?
c. Does the organization have a strong customer service orientation?
d. Does the organization have a data collection and analysis process?
e. How does the regulatory environment affect loan programs?


	Nope.
	impact topics
	Subtopics

	[bookmark: _Hlk112347103]1
	Production
	· Increase or increase in quantity

	
	
	· Increase or increase in quality

	
	
	· Organizational capacity

	
	
	· Diversification

	
	
	· Commercialization

	two
	Economic
	· Income

	
	
	· Employment generation

	
	
	· Cost effectiveness

	
	
	· After the credit now has a saving culture

	
	
	· After the credit, he makes investments (purchases assets)

	3
	Family/Social
(Quality of life)
	· food availability

	
	
	· Access to medical services

	
	
	· living place

	
	
	· Financial and children's education

	
	
	· Empowerment

	
	
	· Social capital

	4
	Loyalty / Satisfaction
	· repetition of credit

	
	
	· credit quality

	
	
	· Customer Support

	
	
	· Credits in other financial systems (competition)

	5
	Institutional[footnoteRef:2] [2:  As a complement to the study, it is recommended to take into account an Institutional topic where issues of solutions for the associate will be addressed.] 

	· Institutional strengthening (new services)

	
	
	· Expansion of the credit portfolio (increase in cooperative members)

	
	
	· Opening of new agencies

	
	
	· Use of digital channels and which ones do you use ( Micoope online and Fri )








	Impact segregation
	By intervention department
	by gender 
	By age group
	By Cooperative affiliated to the MICOOPE System[footnoteRef:3] [3: The sample must include associated farmers of these nine (9) cooperatives to respond to this segregation.] 


	
	· Huehuetenango
· Saint Mark
· Quetzaltenango
· Quiche
· Only the
	· Men
· Women
	· < 30 years
· > 30 years
	· Acredicom,

	
	· 
	· 
	· 
	· Cosami,

	
	· 
	
	
	· Colua,

	
	· 
	
	
	· Cotoneb,

	
	· 
	
	
	· The incarnation,

	
	
	
	
	· Welfare,

	
	
	
	
	· Saint Peter,

	
	
	
	
	· Salcaja

	
	
	
	
	· yaman kutx


C) [bookmark: _Toc115692606]Evaluation Schedule
The impact study team will prepare an implementation plan, showing the dates to collect the information, analyze and present the results, indicate the personnel who will carry out the evaluation and clarify the roles and responsibilities of the team members.

D) [bookmark: _Toc115692607]Quality Assurance Plan: 
The evaluation team will develop a quality assurance plan, with the aim of obtaining the most information to provide the desired results of the study.

E) [bookmark: _Toc115692608]Methodological Plan: 
The evaluation team will develop a strategy document detailing the methodology, including the geographic and participant sampling structure, data collection instruments and methods, data quality control tools, including test survey, and evaluation procedures. In addition to basic requirements for sampling methodology and data collection instruments, the design document will include a data analysis plan detailing how focus group discussions will be transcribed and analyzed; what procedures and tools/software will be used to analyze qualitative data from interviews with key informants and other stakeholders; and how the evaluation will weigh and integrate the qualitative data from these sources with the quantitative data from the survey. Each data collection, analysis and/or presentation tool, including specific instruments, must be approved by Counterpart International prior to the start of the assessment team's fieldwork.

F) [bookmark: _Toc115692609]Impact Study Report
The report, which will not exceed 30 pages (not including annexes), should be concise and direct, using tables, graphs, and diagrams where appropriate. When preparing the impact study report, the team will make links to quantitative and qualitative data. All findings and claims must be based on evidence. The results will be disseminated at a stakeholder workshop in Guatemala, and the report will be made publicly available and posted on the Clearinghouse for Development Experiences. The report will be free of personally identifiable information and CPI will provide USDA with a signed evaluation public disclosure statement.




The following table shows the requirements for the impact study report:

	Report Requirements

	Idiom
	Spanish and English

	Report Length
	Maximum of 30 pages, excluding the table of contents, does not include annexes

	Executive Summary
	include a 3-page executive summary providing a brief overview of the purpose of the impact study, background to the program and activity 5, methods, findings, and lessons learned.

	Methods
	· Explain the evaluation methodology in detail.
· Reveal limitations, especially those associated with the methodology (eg, selection bias, recall bias, etc.).
NOTE: A summary of the methodology should be included in the body of the report, with the full description included as an annex.

	Overview and evaluation questions
	Provide an overview and analysis of the current situation of the agricultural sector in the target areas, specifically at the level of small farmers. Provide answers to the evaluation questions.

	Results
	Present findings and data as analyzed facts, supported by strong quantitative or qualitative evidence.

	Data
	Clean data sets of quantitative and qualitative data

	Conclusions
	Present the conclusions drawn from the impact study.

	recommendations
	Present the recommendations that the impact study team analyzed during the study

	Learned lessons
	Present information on lessons learned during the preparation of the impact study.

	Annexes
	Include as annexes, at a minimum, the following:
· Terms of reference.
· Complete description of the evaluation methods.
· All assessment tools (questionnaires, checklists, discussion guides, surveys, etc.). The evaluation tools must be provided in Spanish and English.
· A list of sources of information (key informants, documents reviewed, other data sources).
Only if applicable, please include as an annex statement of differences regarding any significant unresolved differences of opinion on the part of the funders, implementers, and/or members of the evaluation team.



G) [bookmark: _Toc115692610]Presentation of the Impact Study Report
The report must be presented in Office Power Point, which should not exceed more than 30 slides, so it should be concise and direct, using charts, graphs, and diagrams when appropriate. When developing the presentation of the impact study report, the team will establish links with quantitative and qualitative data. All findings and claims must be based on evidence. The results will be disseminated at a stakeholder workshop in Guatemala, and the report presentation will be made publicly available and posted on the Clearinghouse for Development Experiences. The report will be free of personally identifiable information and CPI will provide USDA with a signed evaluation public disclosure statement.

The following table shows the requirements for submitting the impact study report:

	Report Submission Requirements

	Idiom
	Spanish and English

	Length of report presentation
	Maximum of 30 slides

	Executive summary in maximum 2 slides
	include a 3-page executive summary providing a brief overview of the purpose of the impact study, background to the program and activity 5, methods, findings, and lessons learned.

	Methods, in maximum 2 slides
	· Explain the evaluation methodology in detail.
· Reveal limitations, especially those associated with the methodology (eg, selection bias, recall bias, etc.).

	Overview and evaluation questions, in a minimum of 2 slides
	Provide an overview and analysis of the current situation of the agricultural sector in the target areas, specifically at the level of small farmers. Provide answers to the evaluation questions.

	Results
	Present findings and data as analyzed facts, supported by strong quantitative or qualitative evidence.

	Conclusions, in maximum 2 slides
	Present the conclusions drawn from the impact study.

	Recommendations in maximum 2 slides
	Present the recommendations that the impact study team analyzed during the study.

	Lessons learned in maximum 2 slides
	Present information on lessons learned during the impact study.

	Video success stories
	· 2-minute video clip, focused on the topic of productive impact in Spanish with English subtitles
· 1 video clip of 2 minutes duration, focused on the topic of economic impact with English subtitles
· 1 video clip of 2 minutes duration, focused on the topic of family/social impact (quality of life) with English subtitles
· 1 video clip of 2 minutes duration, focused on the topic of productive impact with English subtitles
· 1 video clip of 2 minutes duration, focused on the theme of impact loyalty/satisfaction with subtitles in English



· [bookmark: _Toc115692611]C.7 EVALUATION TEAM
The Contractor must have a team comprised of individuals with strong technical skills, experience in qualitative, quantitative, and impact evaluations, study design, data collection and analysis, and technical competence in key program activities. In particular, lead consultants will have the following qualifications:
· It is required to have an academic qualification of at least Bachelor of Science in agriculture and five years of demonstrated experience in impact studies and/or evaluation of agricultural development programs (required).
· Experience in conducting impact studies or similar in the Central American region and/or the LAC region (required)
· Experience conducting impact studies for USDA, USAID, or other USG-funded programs (required). Preference will be given to those who demonstrate experience with USDA and/or USAID.
· Experience in quantitative data collection, statistics/econometrics such as randomized controlled trials, propensity score matching, regression, design effects, questionnaire design, etc., including the use of tools/software to analyze quantitative data.
· Experiences in qualitative data collection, such as focus group discussions, key informant interviews, and survey design, including the use of tools/software to analyze qualitative data.
· Experience in implementing inclusive and participatory methods that engage stakeholders
· Experience and ability in preparing survey reports.
· Experience in qualitative and quantitative data collection and assessment analysis, report writing in English, and supervisory skills for each of these competencies.
· Fluency in written and spoken English; proficient in written and spoken Spanish
The provider is expected to:
· Develop a comprehensive evaluation and data collection methodology (sample size and sampling methods, etc.)
· Lead/coordinate and supervise qualitative data collection
· Perform data analysis and generate a summary of findings
· Write the final report
· Communicate directly with Counterpart International headquarters and field staff throughout the assessment design and implementation process.


[bookmark: _Toc115692612]Section D: Proposal Guidelines and Selection Criteria

The supplier must submit a complete proposal to Counterpart Guatemala via electronic submission to Procurement.guatemala@counterpart.org  no later than Friday October 24, 2022, at 5:00 PM EST with the following:

· Curriculum Vitae of the main consultant and assistants.
· References from similar jobs done by the applicant and recommendations if available.
· A technical proposal not to exceed 6 pages (not including annexes) that includes a clear description of the impact study plan that demonstrates a good understanding of the scope of work, methodology, and a plan for data collection and analysis.
· The methodology should include a detailed data collection plan, describing the data collection technique(s) to be used, the related data collection sources, and a justification of the reasons why the collection was chosen. of data.
· A detailed work plan showing the resources needed, the expected time and the results / deliverables achieved.
· The work plan should include a deliverable schedule similar to the following:

	Article
	Deadline
	Date

	Agreement fully executed
	
	November 9, 2022

	First draft of the impact evaluation design
	Within 10 business days after signing the vendor contract
	November 23, 2022

	Completion of impact evaluation design
	Seven days after receiving CPI feedback on   the Impact Evaluation design draft
	December 2, 2022

	Final timeline, work plan, and data collection tools
	Ten days after the approval of Impact Evaluation Design
	December 16, 2022

	Data collection phase
	60 calendar days after the approval of final timeline, work plan, and data collection tools
	January 16- March 16, 2023

	First draft impact assessment report
	Within 14 calendar days after receiving CPI feedback on the draft report
	March 30, 2023

	impact assessment report
	Within 5 calendar days after receiving CPI feedback on the draft report


	April 4, 2023








· Detailed budget in the format provided below:

	Article
	Amount

	Worked
a) Individual 1 (daily rate) x (effort level)
b) Individual 2 (daily rate) x (effort level)
c) Individual 3 (daily rate) x (effort level)
d) Etc.
	Subtotal Labor ($ z.zz )
a) Individual 1 ($ a.yy )
b) Individual 2 ($b.bb)
c) Individual 3 ($c.cc)
d) Etc.

	To travel
a) local trips
b) International travel
i. flights
ii. Accommodation
iii. PISS
	Subtotal trip ($ y.yy )
a) Local trips ($ a.aa )
b) Flights ($b.bb)
c) Accommodation ($c.cc)
d) M&IE ($d.dd)

	supplies
a) Phone calls (interviews)
b) Office supplies
c) Internet
	Subtotal Supplies ($ x.xx )
a) Phone calls ( yyyy )
b) Office supplies (b.bb)
c) Internet (c.cc)

	Contractual
a) Data collection company
b) translators
	Contract Subtotal ($ w.ww )
a) Data collection company ( a.aa )
b) Translators (b.bb)

	Other direct costs
a) Meeting space (venues)
b) Etc.
	Other direct costs ($ v.vv )
a) Meeting space ( a.aa )
b) etc. (b.bb)

	total costs
	




Applications/proposals must be submitted in Spanish and English.

The following criteria will be used to review and score candidate proposals:

	Criteria
	Score (out of 100)

	Soundness of the proposed methodology
	25 points

	Skills and past experience
	20 points

	Previous experience in the LAC region and in the country
	10 points

	Analysis of past experiences agricultural landscapes and value chains
	20 points

	Financial competitiveness
	25 points

	Total:
	100 points




Proposal Validity – Proposals shall remain valid until November 24, which is 30 days after the offer deadline.  A proposal valid for a shorter period shall be rejected as non-responsive.

Deadline and Late Proposals - It is the Bidder’s sole responsibility to ensure that proposals are received by Counterpart on or before the Offer Deadline.  Only electronic submissions will be accepted. Faxed proposals will not be accepted.    A proposal received after the deadline for submission of proposals shall be rejected. Bidders will be held responsible for ensuring that their proposals are received in accordance with the instructions stated herein and a late proposal will not be considered even though it became late as a result of circumstances beyond the Bidder's control. A late proposal will be considered only if the sole cause of its becoming a late proposal was attributable to Counterpart, its employees or agents.

Modification of Proposals – Any Bidder has the right to withdraw, modify, or correct its proposal after it has been delivered to Counterpart, provided the request for such a withdrawal, modification, or correction together with full details of such modification or correction is received by Counterpart at the submission contact point given above before the time set for opening proposals. Counterpart may ask any Bidder for a clarification of its proposal.  Nevertheless, no Bidder will be permitted to alter its Proposal Price or make any other material modification after the deadline unless the RFP has been amended or the deadline extended. Clarifications which do not change the Proposal Price or other material aspects of the proposal may be accepted.

Notification of Award – Before the expiration of the period of proposal validity, Counterpart will notify the successful Bidder in writing that its bid has been accepted.  Upon the successful Bidder acknowledging receipt of the Notification of Award, Counterpart will promptly notify each unsuccessful Bidder, the name of the successful Bidder and that their proposals were rejected. If after notification of award, a Bidder wishes to ascertain the grounds on which its bid was not selected, it should address its request to Counterpart in writing. 

Acceptance of Privacy Policy and Terms and Conditions – By submitting a Proposal to Counterpart International, The company or the individual consents to Counterpart’s privacy policy terms and conditions (https://www.counterpart.org/terms-and-conditions/), and provides Counterpart International permission to process the company’s or individual’s personal data specifically for the performance of, and purposes identified in, this solicitation document and in compliance with Counterpart’s legal obligations under applicable United States and European Union laws, data protection and regulations and any other applicable legal requirements. The company/Individual may withdraw their consent at any time by contacting privacy@counterpart.org. If consent is withdrawn, Counterpart reserve’s the right to accept or reject the offer.
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List of indicators

	#
	performance indicator
	Definition of the indicator and unit of measure
	Data origin
	Method/
Approach to data collection or calculation
	Reference

	eleven
	Number of people receiving financial services as a result of USDA assistance [FFPr Standard #4]	
Breakdown by sex and age
	Total number of agricultural producers, fishermen, shepherds, ranchers, etc., cooperatives,
MSMEs [micro (1-5), small (6-50), medium (51-100) *], commercial companies (processors, services)
vendors, manufacturers) and other entities receiving services from financial companies as a result of USDA assistance.
	Dealer reports and programs
	Data will be collected through a survey of specific FFPr individuals
programs, review of bank/financial institution or USDA records, or financial institution reports
	27.7% of farmers have a credit (33.6% in the case of men and 20.6%
in the women's)
No differences were observed by age (Average age of those with credit = 46.76 years; Average age of those without credit 46.43 years)

	12
	Number of loans disbursed as a result of USDA assistance [FFPr Standard #5]
	This indicator captures the number of loans made/disbursed during the reporting year as a result of USDA assistance to agricultural producers, fishers, herders, ranchers, etc., cooperatives,
MSMEs [micro (1-5), small (6-50), medium (51-100 )* ], commercial companies (processors, service providers, manufacturers) and other entities.
	Sub-recipients and partners of the financial services activity, including associations, credit unions, Guatemalan banks
	Data will be collected through a survey of targeted individuals from FFPr programs, a review of banking/lending institution records, or a survey of financial institution surveys.
	These results imply that the mean number of loans received per
each farmer is 0.76 (n=229, credit holders only)

	13
	Value of loans made as a result of USDA assistance [FFPr Standard #6]
	Value (in US dollars) of loans and credits granted to agricultural producers, fishermen, herders, ranchers, etc., cooperatives, MSMEs [micro (1-5), small (6-50), medium (51-100 )* ], commercial companies (processors, service providers, manufacturers), and other entities.
	Sub-recipients and partners of the financial services activity, including associations, credit unions, Guatemalan banks
	Data will be collected through a survey of specific FFPr individuals
programs, review of loan reports from financial institutions with farm and rural loan programs, or a survey of financial institutions with farm and rural loans.
	Mean amount of the loan received = 1,052.42 U$S (n=228, only credit
Headlines)
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The following map shows the geographic area in the Western Highlands of Guatemala that is receiving agricultural credits through Activity 5 “Financial Services: Facilitating Agricultural Loans” of the Food for Progress program. The program will specifically focus on areas where coffee is the dominant value chain.
[image: ]The five selected departments include: Huehuetenango, San Marcos, Quetzaltenango, Sololá and Quiché.





	































MUNICIPALITIES IN EACH OF THE FIVE DEPARTMENTS OF THE GUATEMALAN WESTERN HIGHLANDS.

No.
SAN MARCOS
1
Ayutla
2
Catarina
3
Comitancillo
4
Concepción Tutuapa
5
El Quetzal
6
El Tumbador
7
Esquipulas Palo Gordo
8
Ixchiguán
9
La Blanca
10
La Reforma
11
Malacatán
12
Nuevo Progreso
13
Ocós
14
Pajapita
15
Río Blanco
16
San Antonio Sacatepéquez
17
San Cristóbal Cucho
18
San José El Rodeo
19
San José Ojetenam
20
San Lorenzo
21
San Marcos
22
San Miguel Ixtlahuacán
23
San Pablo
24
San Pedro Sacatepéquez
25
San Rafael Pie de La Cuesta
26
Sibinal 
27
Sipacapa
28
Tacaná
29
Tajumulco
30
Tejutla

No.
QUETZALTENANGO
1
Almolonga
2
Cabricán
3
Cajolá
4
Cantel
5
Coatepeque
6
Colomba
7
Concepción Chiquirichapa
8
El Palmar
9
Flores Costa Cuca
10
Génova Costa Cuca
11
Huitán
12
La Esperanza
13
Olintepeque
14
Palestina De Los Altos
15
Quetzaltenango
16
Salcajá
17
San Mateo
18
San Carlos Sija
19
San Francisco La Unión
20
San Juan Ostuncalco
21
San Martín Sacatepéquez
22
San Mateo
23
San Miguel Sigüila
24
Sibilia
25
Zunil


	Nope.
	HUEHUETENANGO

	1
	avocado

	two
	Chiantla

	3
	Colotenango

	4
	Huista Conception

	5
	Cuilco

	6
	Huehuetenango

	7
	Jacaltenango

	8
	Democracy

	9
	Freedom

	10
	malacatancito

	eleven
	Nenton

	12
	petatan

	13
	Sam Miguel Acatan

	14
	San Antonio Huista

	fifteen
	San Gaspar Ixchil

	16
	San Idelfonzo Ixtahuacan

	17
	San Juan Atitan

	18
	San Juan Ixcoy

	19
	San Mateo Ixtatan

	twenty
	San Miguel Acatan

	twenty-one
	Saint Peter Necta

	22
	San Rafael Independence

	23
	San Rafael Petzal

	24
	San Sebastian Coatan

	25
	San Sebastian H.

	26
	Santa Ana Huista

	27
	Saint Barbara

	28
	Santa Cruz Barillas

	29
	Santa Eulalia

	30
	Santiago Chimaltenango

	31
	soloma

	32
	tectitan

	33
	Todos Santos Cuchumatan

	3. 4
	Union Cantinil















No.
SOLOLÁ
1
Concepción
2
Nahualá
3
Panajachel
4
San Andrés Semetabaj
5
San Antonio Palopó
6
San José Chacayá
7
San Juan La Laguna
8
San Lucas Tolimán
9
San Marcos La Laguna
10
San Pablo La Laguna
11
San Pedro La Laguna
12
Santa Catarina Ixtahuacán
13
Santa Catarina Palopó
14
Santa Clara La Laguna
15
Santa Cruz La Laguna
16
Santa Lucía Utatlán
17
Santa María Visitación
18
Santiago Atitlán
19
Sololá

No.
QUICHÉ
1
Santa Cruz del Quiché
2
Canillá
3
Chajul
4
Chicamán
5
Chiché
6
Chichicastenango
7
Chinique
8
Cunén
9
Ixcán
10
Joyabaj
11
Pachalum
12
Patzité
13
Sacapulas
14
San Andrés Sajcabajá
15
San Antonio Ilotenango
16
San Bartolomé Jocotenango
17
San Juan Cotzal
18
San Pedro Jocopilas
19
Santa María Nebaj
20
Uspantán
21
Zacualpa


























	Nope.
	Totonicapan

	1
	Momostenango

	two
	San Andres Xecul

	3
	San Bartolo

	4
	San Cristobal Totonicapan

	5
	San Francisco El Alto

	6
	Santa Lucia La Reforma

	7
	Santa Maria Chiquimula

	8
	Totonicapan
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